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August 11, 2022 

 
VIA E-MAIL 
Ms. Joni Petry, Environmental Administrator 
Northeast District 
8800 Baymeadows Way West, Suite 100 

Jacksonville, Florida 32256 
 
 Re: Compliance Assistance Offer 

Cummins, Inc. 
EPA/DEP ID: FLR000233361 
Duval County – Hazardous Waste 

Dear Ms. Petry, 

This correspondence serves as response to your Offer of Compliance Assistance dated 
July 12, 2022, for the Cummins Sales and Service (CSS NA) branch located 755 
Pickettville Road, Jacksonville, FL 32220 (facility).  
 

Areas of Concern  

1. Cummins should ensure that it operates under the used oil self-transportation 
definitions in 40 CFR 279 and 62-710, FAC, by not transporting more than 55-gallons 
of used oil at one time. Cummins should comply with all used oil transporter 
requirements in both these regulations. Once a decision is made, Cummins should 
provide documentation of its process to the inspector listed on page 1 of this report. 
 
Response: Cummins has elected to meet the used oil transporter requirements by 
registering as a used oil transporter on March 10, 2022. A copy of the registration 
form is provided as Attachment A.  
 

2. In the Used Oil Storage and Waste Accumulation Area there was one 55-gallon drum 
that contained diesel fuel from drained fuel filters. According to the facility’s waste 
profiles, waste diesel fuel appears to be managed as RCRA-exempt fuel for energy 
recovery, but shipping records only list gasoline, not diesel fuel. The drum was not 
labeled to indicate the contents. There was also a 55-gallon drum located in the area 
that was stated to contain spent fuel, possibly a combination of diesel and gasoline. 
The drum had three different labels as to the contents. The facility did not have a 
waste profile for waste gasoline and the shipping documents did not include a 
description of how the waste fuel was being managed. The facility should ensure that 
all waste containers are properly labeled to indicate the contents of the containers and 
ensure that accurate waste determinations have been performed for all wastes. 
Cummins should provide waste determination documentation that includes how it is 
managing it waste diesel fuel and/or waste gasoline to the inspector listed on page 1 
of this report? 
 
Response: The excess diesel and gasoline generated during equipment service that 
was observed during the inspection is sent offsite for recycling or energy recovery.  
Consistent with FDEP’s April; 9, 2013, guidance regarding Management of Gasoline 
Fuel Filters, this excess fuel is not a waste.  The facility has labeled the drum 
consistent with its profile name. A photograph of the label is provided as Attachment 
B. A waste profile for the spent fuel is provided as Attachments C. 
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Alleged Violations 
 

1. The facility failed to make an accurate waste determination on the following waste 
streams: 
1. Spent parts washer solvent; 
2. Oily absorbents; 
3. Mop water and Zamboni floor scrubber water; 
4. Water Maze® sludge/filter debris, and 
5. Water Maze® treated washwater. 
 
Response: As an initial matter, Cummins notes that pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 
261.3(d), adopted by reference at 62-730.030, Florida Administrative Code, 
wastewater discharged to a Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW) is excluded 
from the definition of “hazardous waste”.  Mop water, Zamboni floor scrubber water, 
and Water Maze treated washwater are discharged to the POTW and as non-solid 
waste and require no further characterization.  In addition, the facility has historically 
characterized its waste based upon “knowledge of their waste” as authorized by 40 
C.F.R. § 260.10(a)(2)(ii) (also adopted by reference). However, while Cummins has 
knowledge of its waste consistent with this provision, the facility has agreed to 
conduct the requested TCLP tests excluding the Water Maze® treated washwater 
and will provide the results once received.  
 

2. The facility failed to properly manage wipes used with Brakleen.  
 
Response: The facility has revised its wipe management processes to manage them 
as excluded solvent contaminated wipes in accordance with 40 CFR 261.4(a)(26) or 
40 CFR 261.4(b)(18).  See Attachment D. 
 

3. The facility failed to label one 55-gallon drum of used oil filters as "Used Oil Filters." 
In order to return to compliance, the facility should label all containers of used oil 
filters as "Used Oil Filters."  
 
Response: The drum has now been labeled Used Oil Filters. See Attachment E. 

 
Finally, we want to note that we have attempted three times to coordinate a meeting with 
the oil water separator vendor (Aqua Engineers). Our contact is:  
 

Sandie Harris 
Aqua Engineers 

(770) 944-6677  /  (888) 291-6677 
6955 Oak Ridge Pkwy, Ste 107  

Austell, GA 30168 
 
Please feel free to contact Ms. Harris directly. Please advise CSS NA if there is 
additional information that is needed to close out the above action items. 
 

Sincerely, 

 

Mr. William Powell, General Manager 

755 Pickettville Road 

Jacksonville, FL 32220 
Email: william.powell@cummins.com 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Used Oil Transporter Registration Letter 
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ATTACHMENT B 
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ATTACHMENT C 
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ATTACHMENT D 
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ATTACHMENT E 

 

 


